

# **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS v1.3**

# NORTHRAIL STREETCAR EXTENSION Advanced Planning and Environmental Review

RFP Issuance Date: 7/31/2024 RFP Due Date: 8/21/2024 8/23/2024 at 2:00pm CST

KANSAS CITY STREETCAR AUTHORITY (KCSA)

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Purpose4
2.	Background4
3.	Study Area4
4.	Project Management Team4
5.	Scope of Services
6.	Study Schedule
7.	Submittal Requirements
8.	Proposal Requirements7
9.	Selection Procedure
10.	Proposal Evaluation Criteria8
11.	On-Site Presentations
12.	Contract Award9
13.	Protest Procedures9
14.	Assignment (piggyback) defined.
15.	Civil Rights9
16.	Changes to Federal Requirements11
17.	Conflicts of Interest (Organizational)11
17. 18.	Conflicts of Interest (Organizational)11 Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11
18.	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11
18. 19.	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction
18. 19. 20.	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13
18. 19. 20. 21.	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13
18. 19. 20. 21. 22.	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14
<ol> <li>18.</li> <li>19.</li> <li>20.</li> <li>21.</li> <li>22.</li> <li>23.</li> </ol>	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14Federal Tax liability and Recent Felony Convictions14
<ol> <li>18.</li> <li>19.</li> <li>20.</li> <li>21.</li> <li>22.</li> <li>23.</li> <li>24.</li> </ol>	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14Federal Tax liability and Recent Felony Convictions14Fraud and False or Fradulent statements or Related Acts14
<ol> <li>18.</li> <li>19.</li> <li>20.</li> <li>21.</li> <li>22.</li> <li>23.</li> <li>24.</li> <li>25.</li> </ol>	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14Federal Tax liability and Recent Felony Convictions14Fraud and False or Fradulent statements or Related Acts14Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration Terms15
<ol> <li>18.</li> <li>19.</li> <li>20.</li> <li>21.</li> <li>22.</li> <li>23.</li> <li>24.</li> <li>25.</li> <li>26.</li> </ol>	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14Federal Tax liability and Recent Felony Convictions14Fraud and False or Fradulent statements or Related Acts14Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration Terms15Lobbying Restrictions15
<ol> <li>18.</li> <li>19.</li> <li>20.</li> <li>21.</li> <li>22.</li> <li>23.</li> <li>24.</li> <li>25.</li> <li>26.</li> <li>27.</li> </ol>	Debarment and Suspension Certifiaction11Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)11Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligation or Liability13Dispute Resolution13Environmental Regulations14Federal Tax liability and Recent Felony Convictions14Fraud and False or Fradulent statements or Related Acts14Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration Terms15Lobbying Restrictions15Patents and Rights in Data and Copyrights15

31.	Seat Belt Use Policy	18
32.	Subcontractors	18
33.	Termination	19
34.	Texting While Driving and Distracted Driving	20
35.	United States Service Preference – Fly America	20
36.	Procurement Schedule	20
37.	Project Budget	20

ATTACHEMENT A: INTENT TO PERFORM AS A DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

# 1. PURPOSE

The Kansas City Streetcar Authority (KCSA) is seeking proposals from qualified firms to conduct a Streetcar NorthRail Extension Study to advance planning and environmental review for a potential streetcar extension over the Missouri River to the City of North Kansas City, Missouri.

# 2. BACKGROUND

In May of 2016, the Kansas City Streetcar (KC Streetcar) commenced operation in downtown Kansas City. The existing KC Streetcar system is a 2.2 route mile (4.4 track mile) modern streetcar system that runs through Kansas City's central business district along Main Street between the River Market and Union Station.

Since opening in 2016, several expansion efforts are underway including a 3.5-mile southern Main Street Extension connecting the downtown to the University of Missouri, Kansas City Volker Campus at 51<sup>st</sup> and Brookside Boulevard. A second expansion includes a 0.75-mile northern Riverfront Extension connecting the downtown to the Berkley Riverfront Park area via the Grand Avenue Viaduct. Both extensions are funded and under construction.

In 2014, *NorthRail Streetcar Study* was completed to assess technical feasibility and identify a preferred alternative for a northern extension from the existing terminus in the River Market, across the Missouri River, into North Kansas City. The study included recommendations to facilitate pedestrian-oriented development and to support future transit expansion. Additional details on the study conclusions are available on the KC Streetcar website:

# https://kcstreetcar.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/NorthRail-Streetcar-Study\_Report\_14July2014.pdf

In 2021/2022, the Northrail Refresh Study was completed defining a preferred updated alignment and potential funding strategy. Additional details on the study conclusions are available on the KC Streetcar website:

# https://kcstreetcar.org/about-streetcar/northrail/

# 3. STUDY AREA

The primary study area for this effort extends from downtown Kansas City, Missouri, and the River Market north across the Missouri River, to approximately 32nd Avenue in North Kansas City, Missouri. The study area is bounded on the west by the Armour-Swift-Burlington (ASB) Railroad Bridge and the BNSF railroad right-of-way and on the east by Charlotte and Swift Avenue. Consideration will be given to areas outside of the study area with regards to opportunities for longer-term extensions or phases of the identified northern corridor. The study area may be further defined by the project team upon additional input from study stakeholders and the selected consultant team.

# 4. PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM

KCSA will directly manage the study and work with key project management partners including the Kansas City Area Transportation Authority (KCATA), the City of North Kansas City, Missouri Department

of Transportation (MoDOT), the City of Kansas City, Missouri, and the Mid-America Regional Council (MARC). Together, these three entities comprise the project management team (PMT).

# 5. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The services of a qualified consultant team are required to conduct the study. A firm with experience in planning and designing streetcar/light rail systems, accurately assessing project feasibility and cost, and positioning projects for implementation is strongly desired.

The consultant shall propose a specific detailed scope of work and deliverables list to address, at a minimum, the following areas as well as other activities necessary to fulfill the project intent, meet FTA requirements, and support a public engagement strategy throughout.

# Task 1: Project Management

Manage the planning work and the subconsultants and work closely with the Project Manager and PMT to ensure coordination of all project tasks. Support and provide assistance with the overall project administration led by KCSA and the PMT.

#### Task 2: Public Engagement

Develop and implement a public engagement plan that will provide key stakeholders and the public an opportunity to provide input and express preference. Public engagement should leverage existing relationships, organizations, community groups, and events.

Key stakeholders that should be engaged include City of North Kansas City residents and businesses, Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT), and the City of Kansas City, Missouri (KCMO).

# Task 3: Review and Refresh of Prior Studies and Conditions

Compile and summarize findings from past and recent studies, building off work completed in the 2021/2022 NorthRail Refresh Study effort. Emphasis should be put towards changes and related planning efforts that may require reconsideration since the 2021/2002 Refresh Study effort.

# Task 4: Project Purpose and Need Confirmation

Working with the PMT and key stakeholders, review previous purpose and need statements and confirm, to guide the study's activities and establish a set of goals and objectives that will be used to estimate and evaluate alignment concepts.

# Task 5: Heart of America Bridge Condition Assessment

Conduct a high-level condition assessment in partnership with MoDOT to identify any limitations and better define design requirements.

# Task 6: Advanced Planning – Refined Alignment and Conceptual Design

Conduct an assessment and screening of alignments using the Heart of America Bridge, station stops, and logical termini. Advance planning and conceptual design of a preferred configuration to 15% design.

The screening should consider and compare refined alignment alternatives and should build on and incorporate previous efforts. The evaluation may include updated demographic characteristics,

development momentum and potential, ridership potential, operational reliability, connectivity to key destinations and activity centers, a fatal flaw analysis, and general feasibility (cost, community impacts, etc.).

Revise alignment exhibits, cross sections of preferred configuration, develop corridor roll plot and aligns with conclusions and conceptual design.

### Task 7: Environmental Review and NEPA (Assumed Documented Categorical Exclusion /DCE)

Conduct an environmental review and complete analysis required to support federal environmental review requirements, assuming the categorization of a Documented Categorical Exclusion. Prepare documentation and support NEPA review.

# Task 8: Cost Estimate, Financial Plan, and Governance Structure

Develop a detailed financial assessment for a northern streetcar extension over the Missouri River to North Kansas City, Missouri. The cost estimate and financial plan should be based on the abovementioned factors including alignment, bridge assessment, station stops, and 15% design. Cost estimates should be based on recent and ongoing project unit costs.

The financial analysis should include a detailed estimate of operating and capital costs, analysis of potential and acceptable financing and funding strategies, and overall preferred financial strategy.

Define and evaluate governance structures and an operations and maintenance funding strategy that accommodates the existing agreements among the City of Kansas City, Missouri, the Main Street Rail Transportation Development District (MSRTDD) and the KCSA.

#### Task 9: Final Preferred Alternative and Plan

Refine the preferred alternative that includes the locally preferred river crossing, alignment, and financial strategy for advancement. Develop a detailed implementation and phasing plan for the preferred alternative based on corridor readiness and overall feasibility. The final plan should include next steps related to project development, next steps related to executing the financial strategy, governance and operations strategy, transit integration plan (related to existing and/or supportive bus or other modal services in the corridor), and long-term Northland expansion opportunities.

# 6. STUDY SCHEDULE

The PMT seeks to complete this work by June 1<sup>st</sup>, 2025. In crafting a proposal, teams should reflect an estimated schedule based on this consideration in conjunction with team capabilities and capacities.

# 7. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

To be eligible for consideration *one electronic* copy of the response to the RFP must be received by KCSA no later than 2:00 PM CST on Friday, August 21<sup>st</sup> 23<sup>rd</sup>, 2024. Submit electronically via email to Lauren Krutty (<u>lkrutty@kcstreetcar.org</u>), subject line "NorthRail Streetcar Extension Study Proposal Submittal." Late submittals or modifications of proposals received after the exact hour and date specified for receipt will not be considered. The KCSA reserves the right at any time to change or extend the due date and time for any reason. Questions should be directed to <u>lkrutty@kcstreetcar.org</u>

No submitted responses will be reviewed prior to the due date. No such respondent will have any preference, special designation, advantage or disadvantage whatsoever in the procurement.

# 8. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The following items must be addressed in all proposals.

- A. Experience and Qualifications
  - a. Name and address of the contracting firm and contact information (email and phone of the primary contact person for purposes of this proposal).
  - b. List of all proposed subcontractors, if any.
  - c. Three (3) team references.
  - d. A brief narrative regarding the team's capabilities to carry out this study including special assets, areas of expertise, analytical tools, data sources, etc. to which the firm may have access.
  - e. Firm experience listing similar projects and qualifications undertaken by the proposing firm and/or its subcontractors showing contract amounts, description of work performed, client contact persons, phone numbers, and email addresses.
  - f. Description of primary team member's professional experience and qualifications.
  - g. Proposed role and responsibilities for each primary team member and description of existing and anticipated workload during the period of study.
- B. Proposed Scope of Work
  - a. A recommended scope of work consistent with elements outlined in Section 5: Scope of Services, with an emphasis on a preferred and/or recommended approach as well as proposed deliverables.
  - b. Proposers' recommendations should demonstrate and propose strategies that exemplify best practices in planning, designing, modeling, and implementing streetcar services.
  - c. An emphasis and priority in evaluation will be placed on firms with qualifications and experience that have resulted in successful implementation (engineering, construction, and operations).
  - d. Proposed schedule for the overall study, as well as proposed timeframes for each task included in the recommended approach.
- C. Quality Assurance Plan
- D. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Requirements and Participation
  - a. KCSA encourages all qualified businesses to submit letters of interest as prime contractors, subcontractors or joint ventures. Women and/or minority owned business are encouraged to submit proposals. DBE (Disadvantage Business Enterprise) firms must be certified by the Kansas and/or Missouri Departments of Transportation in order to be counted as participation toward any established DBE Goal.
  - DBE proposers should submit, with their proposals, intent to perform as a DBE, Attachment A, for each proposed DBE contractor, subcontractor, or joint venture. Certification of DBEs will be made in accordance with KCSA's Disadvantage Business Enterprise Program.

Any supplemental information or documents (i.e., not required by this RFP) that are included in the proposal should be marked as an Attachment and clearly identified in the Table of Contents.

Proposers can structure their response in the order they think best presents the information. A Table of Contents is recommended.

### 9. SELECTION PROCEDURE

If necessary, a short list, of not more than five (5) proposers and/or proposer teams will be selected by KCSA, after KCSA and the study's selection committee analyzes all proposal information. Short-list proposers should be available for interviews and/or presentations prior to the selection of a contractor.

The KCSA reserves the right to request additional information from any or all of the proposers. Negotiations by the KCSA will not be deemed a counteroffer or rejection of any original proposal.

The final selection of a contractor is contingent upon approval by KCSA's Board of Directors. KCSA reserves the right to negotiate a contract, including a scope of work, and contract price, with any proposers or other qualified party.

This Request for Proposal does not commit KCSA to award a contract, to pay any cost incurred in preparation of a response to this Request, or to procure or contract for services or supplies. KCSA reserves the right to accept or reject any and all responses received as a result of this Request, or cancel this Request in part or in its entirety if it is in the best interests of KCSA to do so. Proposers shall not offer any gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value to any officer, employee, agent, or director of KCSA for the purpose of influencing favorable disposition toward either their proposal or any other proposal submitted as a result of the Request for Proposal.

KCSA reserves the right to amend, consolidate, expand, cancel, delete, or request additional consulting services for one or more of the project's Scope of Work activities if KCSA deemed that such activity is advantageous to KCSA and the successful completion of the project. KCSA reserves the right to suggest to any or all proposers to the Request for Proposal that such proposers form into teams of consulting firms or organizations deemed to be advantageous to KCSA in performing the Scope of Work. KCSA will suggest such formation when such relationships appear to offer combinations of expertise or abilities not otherwise available. Proposers have the right to refuse to enter into any suggested relationships.

The KCSA reserves the right to award additional contracts for related services or subsequent Project phases to the selected team.

#### **10. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA**

Stated evaluation criteria will assist the KCSA and the selection committee in evaluating and selecting the most qualified team for this project. The selection committee will evaluate proposals on the following:

A. Technical Expertise (20 Points) – Experience of the prime firm and subcontractors with related planning, design, and implementation of comparable streetcar projects; experience and qualifications of the project manager; and experience and qualifications of primary team members.

- B. Project Approach & Understanding (20 points) Understanding of key concepts, techniques, evaluation procedures, and best practices; clear and thoughtful proposed approach; understanding of regional transit operations, structure, and past planning efforts; understanding of the community significance of the project; reasonable schedule; and general organization and clarity of the proposal.
- C. Community Engagement Approach (20 points) Clear and well-organized plan for meaningful engagement with residents, businesses, stakeholders, and partners.
- D. References and Work Experience (20 points) References reflecting previous work experience of the project team and satisfactory accomplishment of responsibilities (quality of final product, schedule adherence, and responsiveness to client inputs and project needs).
- E. Project Management (20 points) Schedule of proposed staff; commitment of staff to the project; reasonable availability; and percent of effort by DBE firms.

# **11. ON-SITE PRESENTATIONS**

The project selection team may require oral presentation of those firms identified on the proposer's short list. Presentations well be held at KCSA or a site designated by KCSA.

# **12. CONTRACT AWARD**

KCSA will notify the selected candidate by e-mail. Following verbal notification, KCSA will negotiate a standard professional service agreement with the selected candidate. The selected candidate's proposal will be incorporated by reference in the contract. Additionally, KCSA will notify, via email, the candidates who are not selected.

# **13. PROTEST PROCEDURES**

In the course of this solicitation for proposals and the selection process, a proposer (bidder of offer or whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of the contract) may file a protest when in the proposer's opinion, actions were taken by KCSA staff and /or the selection committee which could unfairly affect the outcome of the selection procedure. All protest should be in writing and directed to Mr. Tom Gerend, Executive Director, Kansas City Streetcar Authority. Protest should be made immediately upon occurrence of the incident in question but no later than three (3) days after the proposer receives notification of the outcome of the section procedure. The protest should clearly state the grounds for such a protest.

Upon receipt of the protest, KCSA's Executive Director will review the actual procedures followed during the selection process and the documentation available. If it is determined the action(s) unfairly changed the outcome of the process, notifications with the selected proposer will cease until the matter is resolved.

# **14. CIVIL RIGHTS**

Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S. C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin or disability.

In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing regulations that the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) may issue.

Equal Employment Opportunity. The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to this Contract:

- A. Race, Color, Creed, National Origin or Sex. In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42. U.S.C. §2000e, et seq., and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. §5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal opportunity requirements of the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor" 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Contract. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- B. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S.EEOC) regulations, "Age Discrimination in Employment Act," 29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., and U. S. Department of Health and Human Services regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 45 C.F. R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. §5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- C. Disabilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §12102 et seq., the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et eq., and the Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

ADA Access Requirements. In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112 and section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Department of Transportation regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 CFR Part 37; and U.S. Department of Transportation regulations, "Americans with Disabilities Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 CFR Part 1192 and 49 CFR Part 38, pertaining to facilities and equipment to be used in public transportation. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301 (d) which expresses the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement transportation accessibility rights for elderly persons and persons with disabilities. Contractor also agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

Contractor understands that it is required to include this Article in all subcontracts. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements or to include these requirements in any subcontract is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as the KCSA deems appropriate, including but not limited to withholding monthly progress payments and/or disqualifying the Contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

# **15. CHANGES TO FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS**

Contractor shall at all times be aware and comply with all applicable Federal Transit Administration regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation, those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement between the Authority and FTA (FTA MA (26) dated October 1, 2019), as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Contract. Contractors' failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this Contract. Contractor agrees to include this clause in all subcontracts at any tier. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractors who will be subject to its provisions.

# **16. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST (ORGANIZATIONAL)**

In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112, the Contractor certifies that it has no other activities or relationships that would make the Contractor unable, or potentially unable, to render impartial assistance or advice to KCSA, or that would impair the Contractor's objectivity in performing work under this Contract, or that would result in an unfair competitive advantage to Contractor or to another third party performing the Project work.

# **17. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFIACTION**

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 C.F.R. Part 1200, which adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget &U.S. OMB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement)," 2 C.F.R. part 180.

The Contractor, its principals and any affiliates, shall certify that it is not included in the "U.S. General Services Administration's List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs," as defined at 49 CFR Part 29, Subpart C.

The Contractor agrees to refrain from awarding any subcontract of any amount (at any tier) to a debarred or suspended subcontractor, and to obtain a similar certification from any subcontractor (at any tier) seeking a contract exceeding \$25,000.

The Contractor agrees to provide KCSA a copy of each conditioned debarment or suspension certification provided by a prospective subcontractor at any tier, and to refrain from awarding a subcontract with any party that has submitted a conditioned debarment or suspension certification until FTA approval is obtained.

# **18. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)**

It is the policy of KCSA and the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE's), as defined herein and in the Federal regulations published as 49 CFR Part 26, shall have an equal opportunity to participate in in DOT-assisted contracts. It is also the policy of KCSA to:

- A. Ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts;
- B. Create a level playing field on which DBE's can compete fairly for DOT-assisted contracts;
- C. Ensure that the DBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law;
- D. Ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility are permitted to participate as DBE's;
- E. Help remove barriers to the participation of DBE's in DOT assisted contracts;
- F. To promote the use of DBE's in all types of federally assisted contracts and procurement activities; and
- G. Assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in the marketplace outside the DBE program.

This Contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. A contract goal of 23.3% has been established for this procurement.

The Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color national origin, or sex in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR. Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted contract. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as KCSA deems appropriate. Each subcontract the Contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this paragraph (see 49 C.F.R. 26.13(b)).

The Contractor may not substitute, remove or terminate a DBE subcontractor without KCSA's prior written consent. Written consent of termination may only be given if the Contractor has demonstrated good cause. Before submitting its request to terminate or substitute a DBE subcontractor, the Prime Contractor must give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to KCSA, of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute, and the reason for the request. The Contractor must give the DBE five days to respond to the Contractor's notice and advise KCSA and the Contractor of the reasons, if any, why it objects to the proposed termination of its subcontract and why KCSA should not approve the Contractor's action. If required in a particular case as a matter of public necessity (e.g., safety), the response period may be shortened.

Good Cause. Good cause includes the following circumstances:

- A. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written contract; or
- B. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the work to its normal industry standards. Provided, however, that the good cause does not exist if the failure or refusal of the DBE subcontractor to perform its work on the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the Prime Contractor; or
- C. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the Prime Contractor's reasonable, nondiscriminatory bond requirements; or
- D. The listed DBE subcontractor becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit unworthiness; or

- E. The listed DBE subcontractor is ineligible to work on public works projects because of suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant to 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and F00 or applicable state law; or
- F. The DBE subcontractor is not a responsible contractor; or
- G. The listed DBE subcontractor voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides the Prime Contractor written notice of its withdrawal;
- H. The listed DBE is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of work required;
- I. A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the listed DBE contractor is unable to complete its work on the contract;
- J. Other documented good cause that compels KCSA to terminate the DBE subcontractor. Provided the good cause does not exist if the Prime contractor seeks to terminate a DBE it relied upon to obtain the contract so that the Prime Contractor can self-perform the work for which the DBE contractor was engaged or so that the Prime Contractor can substitute another DBE or non-DBE contractor.

Before submitting its request to terminate or substitute a DBE subcontractor, the Prime Contractor must give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to KCSA, of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute, and the reason for the request. The Prime Contractor must give the DBE five days to respond to the Prime Contractor's notice and advise the KCSA and the Contractor of the reasons, if any, why it objects to the proposed termination of its subcontract and why KCSA should not approve the Prime Contractor's action. If required in a particular case as a matter of public necessity (e.g., safety), the response period may be shortened.

Transit Vehicle Manufacturers (TVMs) must certify that it has complied with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. part 26.49 and is on FTA's certified list of TVMs that have submitted a goal methodology to FTA that has been approved or has not been approved at the time of this Contract.

# **19. DISCLAIMER OF FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY**

The Contractor, and any subcontractors acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of this contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to this Contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from this Contract. It is further agreed that the clause shall be included in each subcontract and shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provision.

#### **20. DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Contract which is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by KCSA's Executive Director, who shall reduce the decision to writing and mail or otherwise furnish a copy to the Contractor. The determination of the of the Executive Director shall be final and conclusive determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent or capricious, arbitrary, or not supported by substantial evidence. In connection with any appeal proceeding under this clause the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its appeal. Pending final decision of a

dispute hereunder, and unless otherwise directed in writing by KCSA, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Executive Director's decision.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract and the rights and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the KCSA or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

# **21. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS**

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §7401-7671q et seq. The Contractor agrees to report, and to require each subcontractor at every tier receiving more than \$100,000 from this Contract to report any violation of these requirements resulting from any project implementation activity to KCSA. KCSA will in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office. Required if over \$100,000

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report, and require each subcontractor at every tier receiving more than \$100,000 from this Contract to report, any violation of these requirements resulting from any project implementation activity to KCSA. The Contractor understands that KCSA will in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office. Required if over \$100,000

The Contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this clause in all subcontracts under this Contract.

# 22. FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

Pursuant to 48 CFR Parts 1, 4, 9, 12 and 52 the Contractor affirmatively represents and certifies that it, nor any of its directors, officers, principals, or agents:

- A. are delinquent in paying any federal tax liability;
- B. have not been convicted of any felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months; or
- C. have not more than 90 days prior to certification been notified of any unpaid federal tax assessment for which the liability remains unsatisfied.

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all subcontracts at all tiers, regardless of value, and to obtain the same certification and disclosure from all subcontractors (at all tiers).

# 23. FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRADULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS

The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR

Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to the Project. Upon execution of the Contract, the Contractor certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, or may make pertaining to the project covered under this Contract. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government in connection with this Contract, the Government reserves the right to impose on the Contractor the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1), to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor agrees to include these clauses in each subcontract, and it is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

# 24. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION TERMS

The provisions in this Contract include certain standard terms and conditions required by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), whether or not expressly set forth. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F or any revision thereto, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in the Contract. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any requests that would be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions. The Contractor agrees to include this clause in all subcontracts at any tier. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractors who will be subject to the provision.

#### **25. LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS**

The Contractor is bound by its certification contained in its offer to the Authority regarding the use of federal or non-federal funds to influence, or attempt to influence any federal officer or employee regarding the award, execution, continuation, or any similar action of any federal grant or other activities as defined in 31 U.S.C. 1352, 2 C.F.R. § 200.450, 2 C.F.R. part 200 appendix II (J) and 49 CFR Part 20. The Contractor agrees to comply with this requirement throughout the term of the Contract.

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all subcontracts at all tiers exceeding \$100,000 and to obtain the same certification and disclosure from all subcontractors (at all tiers).

#### 26. PATENTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA AND COPYRIGHTS

The term "subject data" used in this clause means recorded information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the Contract. The term includes graphic or pictorial delineation in media such as drawings or photographs; text in specifications or related performance or design-type documents; machine forms such as punched cards, magnetic tape, or computer memory printouts, and information retained in computer memory. The term "subject data" does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information incidental to contract administration.

The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the Contract:

- A. Except for its own internal use, Contractor many not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part or in any manner or form, nor may Contractor authorize others to do so, without the written consent of KCSA, until such time as KCSA may have either released or approved the release of such data to the public.
- B. In accordance with 2 C.F.R. part 200, Appendix II (F) and 37 C.F.R. part 401, the Federal Government reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the following subject data for "Federal Government purposes":
  - a. Any subject data developed under the Contract, whether or not a copyright has been obtained; and
  - b. Any rights of copyright purchased by KCSA or Contractor using Federal assistance in whole or in part provided by FTA.
- C. "For Federal Government Purposes" means use only for the direct purpose of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner's consent, the Federal Government may not extend its Federal license to any other party. When FTA awards Federal assistance for experimental, developmental, or research work, it is FTA's general intention to increase transportation knowledge available to the public, rather than to restrict the benefits resulting from the work to participants in that work. Therefore, unless FTA determines otherwise, Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or research work, agrees to permit FTA to make available to the public, either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of the Contract, or a copy of the subject data first produced under the Contract for which a copyright has not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the subject of the underlying Contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under this Contract shall become subject data as defined previously and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This subsection, however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Contractor's use whose costs are financed in whole or part with Federal assistance provided by FTA for transportation capital projects.
- D. Unless prohibited by state law, Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless KCSA and the Federal Government, its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights, or rights of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use or disposition of any data furnished under this Contract. The Contractor shall not be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee, official, or agents of the Federal Government.
- E. Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the KCSA or to the Federal Government under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to KCSA or to the Federal Government under any patent.
- F. Data developed by the KCSA or Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided by the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by this Contract to which this clause has been added is exempt from the requirements of

subsections (b), (c), and (d) of this clause, provided that the KCSA or Contractor identifies that data in writing at the time of delivery of the contract work.

G. Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work funded in whole or in part with federal assistance.

# 27. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT

Contractor represents that it is and will be compliant at all times with 2 CFR § 200.216, and will not provide telecommunications and/or video surveillance services or equipment to the KCSA in the performance of any contract, subcontract or other contractual instrument resulting from a solicitation or RFP that have been manufactured by a supplier (including any subsidiary or affiliate of those entities) that is considered prohibited or not approved under this regulation. This statute is not limited to entities that use end-products produced by those companies; and also covers the use of any equipment, system, or services that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

#### 28. RECORD RETNETION AND ACCESS

The Contractor agrees that, during the course of this agreement and any extensions thereof, and for three years thereafter, it will maintain intact and readily accessible all data, documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting materials relating to this Contract in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.33, 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g) and 49 CFR part 633. In the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to maintain same until such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto have been disposed of.

The Contractor shall permit KCSA, the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, the Comptroller General of the United States, and, as applicable, any local municipality, to inspect all work, materials, construction sites, payrolls, and other data and records, and to audit the books, records, and accounts of the Contractor relating to its performance under this Contract.

The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed, and to include this clause in all subcontracts.

# 29. REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT – SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS

The Contractor shall establish procedures to ensure timely payment of amounts due pursuant to the terms of its subcontracts. The Contractor shall pay each DBE and non-DBE subcontractor for satisfactory performance of its contract, or any billable portion thereof, in accordance with the timing set forth in any applicable laws or no later than 30 days, whichever is less, from the date of the Contractor's receipt of payment from the Authority for work by that subcontractor.

If retainage is withheld from subcontractors, the Contractor is required to return any retainage payment to its DBE and non-DBE subcontractors in accordance with the timing set forth in any applicable laws or no later than 30 days, whichever is less, from the date of receipt of the retainage payment from the Authority related to the subcontractor's work. Any delay or postponement of payment from said time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval from KCSA.

The Contractor shall certify on each payment request to the Authority that payment has been or will be made to all subcontractors. Lien waivers may be required for the Contractor and its subcontractors.

The Contractor shall notify KCSA on or before each payment request, of any situation in which scheduled subcontractor payments have not been made.

If a subcontractor alleges that the Contractor has failed to comply with this provision, the Contractor agrees to support any Authority investigation, and if deemed appropriate by the Authority, to consent to remedial measures to ensure that subcontractors are properly paid as set forth herein.

The Contractor agrees that the Authority may provide appropriate information to interested subcontractors who inquire about the status of Authority payments to the Contractor.

Nothing in this provision is intended to create a contractual obligation between the Authority and any subcontractor or to alter or affect traditional concepts of privity of contract between all parties.

#### **30. SEAT BELT USE POLICY**

Contractor agrees to comply with terms of Executive Order No. 13043 and 13513, "Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States;" 23 U.S.C. part 402; and U.S. DOT Order 3902.10. Contractor is encouraged to include those requirements in each subcontract awarded for work relating to this Agreement.

#### **31. SUBCONTRACTORS**

- A. Subcontractor Approval. None of the work or services covered by this Contract shall be subcontracted without the prior written approval of KCSA. The only subcontractors approved for this Contract, if any, are listed in an appendix to this Contract. Any substitutions or additions of subcontractors must have the prior written approval of KCSA as set forth herein. The Contractor is responsible for managing and directing the work of the Subcontractors and for all actions of subcontractors performing work under this Contract.
- B. DBE Subcontractor Employment. See Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program provisions.
- C. Subcontractor Payments. See Requests for Payment Provisions.
- D. Adequate Provision(s) in Subcontract(s). Any subcontracts related to this Contract must contain adequate provisions to define a sound and complete agreement. In addition, all subcontracts shall contain contractual provisions or conditions that allow for:
  - a. Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where subcontractors violate or breach contract terms, including sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.
  - b. Termination for cause and for convenience including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.
  - c. The following provisions if included in this Contract:
    - i. ADA Access Requirements
    - ii. Assignment (Piggybacking)
    - iii. Changes
    - iv. Civil Rights
    - v. Conflicts of Interest (Organizational)
    - vi. Debarment and Suspension
    - vii. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
    - viii. Disclaimer of Federal Government Obligations or Liability
    - ix. Dispute Resolution
    - x. Environmental Regulations

- xi. Federal Changes
- xii. Federal Tax Liability and Felony Convictions
- xiii. Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts
- xiv. Incorporation of FTA Terms
- xv. Lobbying
- xvi. Patents and Rights in Data and Copyrights
- xvii. Privacy Act Requirements
- xviii. Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Equipment
- xix. Record Retention and Access
- xx. Requests for Payment
- xxi. Seat Belt Use Policy
- xxii. Subcontractors
- xxiii. Termination
- xxiv. Texting While Driving and Distracted Driving
- xxv. United States Service Preference
- E. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontractor as KCSA or the U.S. Department of Transportation may direct as means of enforcing such provisions of this contract.
- F. KCSA reserves the right to review the Contractor's written agreement with its subcontractors (DBE and non-DBE) to confirm that required federal contract clauses are included.
- **G.** KCSA may perform random audits and contact minority subcontractors to confirm the reported DBE participation.

#### **32. TERMINATION**

Termination for Convenience. The KCSA may terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in KSCA's best interest. The Contractor will only be paid the Contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or work or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the Contract.

Funding Contingency. If this Contract is subject to financial assistance provided by the U.S. Department of Transportation, the Contractor agrees that withdrawal or termination of such financial assistance by the U.S. DOT may require KCSA to terminate the agreement.

# 33. TEXTING WHILE DRIVING AND DISTRACTED DRIVING

Consistent with Executive Order No. 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," October 1, 2009, 23 U.S.C. Section 402 note, and U.S. DOT Order 3902.10, "Text Messaging While Driving," December 30, 2009, the Contractor agrees to promote policies and initiatives for its employees and other personnel that adopt and promote safety policies to decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving, and to encourage each subcontractor to do the same.

#### 34. UNITED STATES SERVICE PREFERENCE - FLY AMERICA

In accordance with Section 5 of the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118 - the "Fly America" Act), and in accordance with the General Service Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, recipients and subrecipients of federal funds and their Contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S. Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier (based on the reasons found in FAR § 47.403) and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation and exceed \$150,000.

#### **35. PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE**

RFP Issued	Friday, July 31st, 2024
Proposals Due	Wednesday, August 21st, 2024
	Friday, August 23 <sup>rd</sup> , 2024
Interviews (Tentative and as Required)	Week of August 26 <sup>th</sup> , TBD
Contract Award (Anticipated)	September 26 <sup>th</sup> , 2024
Project Completion	June 1 <sup>st</sup> , 2025

Below is a tentative schedule for procurement.

# Attachment A

# Intent to Perform as a Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE)

Project Title and Description:

The undersigned intends to perform work in connection with the above project as (check one):

Prime Contractor Subcontractor

\_\_\_\_\_ Joint Venture \_\_\_\_\_ Other (please specify)\_\_\_\_\_

If applicable name of prime contractor or joint venture partner:

The DBE status of the undersigned is confirmed by a DBE Certification from one or all of the following (please provide copy of current Certification Certificate):

\_\_\_\_ City of Kansas City Missouri

\_\_\_\_\_ Kansas City Area Transportation Agency (KCATA)

\_\_\_\_Other (please specify) \_\_\_\_\_(KCSA may require additional certification documentation)

The undersigned is prepared to perform the following described work in connection with the above project (attach additional sheet in needed),

Date

Name of DBE Firm

By:\_\_\_\_\_ Signature of DBE Firm's Authorized Representative

(Please Print Names of Authorized Representative)